Open Agenda

southwark.gov.uk

Environment Scrutiny Commission

Wednesday 17 June 2020
7.00 pm
Online/Virtual. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting.
Please contact FitzroyAntonio.williams@southwark.gov.uk or
Julie.timbrell@southwark.gov.uk for a link.

Membership

Councillor Leanne Werner (Chair)
Councillor Graham Neale (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess

Councillor Tom Flynn

Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor Damian O'Brien

Councillor Michael Situ

Jeremey Leach

Reserves

Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE
Councillor Adele Morris

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and
reports on this agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of
these reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances If you are a resident of the borough and have paid
someone to look after your children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities
so that you could attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.
Please collect a claim form at the meeting.

Access The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on
building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s
web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.

Contact Julie Timbrell on 020 75250514 or email: Julie.timbrell@southwrk.gov.uk



http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx

u hwaY K

southwark.gov.uk

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Eleanor Kelly 9
Chief Executive ‘

PRINTED ON
RECYCLED PAPER



&’fﬁ.

southwark.gov.uk

Environment Scrutiny Commission

Wednesday 17 June 2020
7.00 pm
Online/Virtual. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. Please
contact FitzroyAntonio.williams@southwark.gov.uk or
Julie.timbrell@southwark.gov.uk for a link.

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.
PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1.  APOLOGIES

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to the
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATION

Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item
of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. MINUTES

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the open meeting held on
10 March 2020.

5. HIGHWAYS, PATHWAYS AND CAR-PARKING UPDATE, INCLUDING 1-5
IMPACT OF COVID 19



Item No. Title

10.

Transport policy officers have provided the attached briefing on the impact
of Covid 19 on transport plans.

In response to a Commission request for a briefing on the percentage of
car parking spaces officers have provided the attached table on CPZ
permits.

Pip Howson, Team Leader Transport policy and Simon Bevan, Director of

Planning , will attend and officers from Highways have been invited to
contribute.

CARBON OFFSET UPDATE

A report in response to the Commission’s request for a briefing on the
percentage of schemes utilising carbon offsets to meet targets, and how
carbon offsets are used, is expected to follow.

Councillor Johnson Situ, Cabinet Member for Growth, Development and
Planning and Simon Bevan, Director of Planning, will attend to present.

SELCHP

Environment Agency officers have been asked provide a comment on the
attached emission position statement and attend the meeting.

AIR QUALITY UPDATE

Officers have provided an update on the impact of lockdown on Air
Quality and a summary of the latest Annual Status Report on Air Quality.

SCRUTINY REVIEW: AIR QUALITY

A film, Southwark Voices, has been made by Helena Smith to contribute
to the Air Quality review. It features interviews with Southwark residents in
the Spring of 2020 commenting on the reduction in pollution during the
Covid 19 lockdown:

https://vimeo.com/426827465

The draft scrutiny review report on Air Quality is to follow.
SCRUTINY REVIEW: CLIMATE EMERGENCY

A second draft report on the Climate Emergency roadmap and emerging
strategy is attached.

Page No.

24 -39


https://vimeo.com/426827465

Item No. Title Page No.

11. WORK PROGRAMME

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEM AS NOTIFIED AT THE
START OF THE MEETING.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date of publication: 15 May 2020.



Agenda Item 5

COVID 19 transport update

Since the last commission meeting the country went into lockdown.

Councillor Richard Livingstone Cabinet member for Environment, Transport and the Climate
Emergency with Caroline Bruce Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure are co-
ordinating the councils response to the COVID 19 emergency.

To ensure the Community is informed Officers have set up a web page on the Council’s
website where officers will update progress. The webpage includes an interactive element
managed by Common Place.

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/public-health/for-the-
public/coronavirus/impact-on-council-services/coronavirus-help-us-combat-covid-19-by-
suggesting-healthier-streets

Below is a summary of key information related to this;

On 1st May 2020 TfL requested all boroughs to pause all work on the existing LIP funded
programme and other TfL funded programmes.

TfL have secured £45m of emergency funding from central government to deliver social
distancing projects on borough roads

On 15" May 2020 following on from the agreement reached between TfL and DfT TfL
circulated guidance. TfL advise that to maintain social distancing on public transport it will
only be able to accommodate approximately 20% of the previous peak demand. So to
ensure that those living and working in London do not choose to travel by car they have
devised the London Streetspace Plan (LSP), designed to radically reallocate road space
to walking and cycling, and improve bus efficiency in London.

https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-projects/streetspace-for-london

Southwark submitted their LSP bid on 22" May 2020 and are awaiting news of the
settlement.

On 9t May the Department of Transport (DfT)launched their Emergency Active Travel
Fund. Unlike previous funding opportunities where TfL co-ordinate a single London
response, clarity on London borough’s opportunities has been clarified in a letter dated 28t
May 2020

The key points to note are:

¢ London’s indicative share of the £225m will be £25 million over the rest of the
financial year, with £5 million in the first tranche. Equating to £100,000 to each
individual borough and the balance of £1.7m to Transport for London. (Separate to
the recent TfL funding settlement from the Department of £55 million.) Submissions
for this first tranche should be made by 5" June 2020.

o The Department expects that the measures supported by this additional £25 million
will be closely coordinated with TfL’s active travel investment programme.

e To receive any money under this or future tranches, boroughs and TfL will need to
satisfy the Department that there are swift and meaningful plans in place to reallocate
road space to cyclists and pedestrians, including on strategic corridors.


https://www.southwark.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/public-health/for-the-public/coronavirus/impact-on-council-services/coronavirus-help-us-combat-covid-19-by-suggesting-healthier-streets
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/public-health/for-the-public/coronavirus/impact-on-council-services/coronavirus-help-us-combat-covid-19-by-suggesting-healthier-streets
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/public-health/for-the-public/coronavirus/impact-on-council-services/coronavirus-help-us-combat-covid-19-by-suggesting-healthier-streets
https://tfl.gov.uk/travel-information/improvements-and-projects/streetspace-for-london

o If work has not started within four weeks of receiving the allocation under this tranche
of funding, or has not been completed within eight weeks of starting, the Department
will reserve the right to claw the funding back by adjusting downwards a future grant
payment to your authority. This is also likely to have a material impact on your ability
to secure any funding in tranche 2.

Officers submitted the bid for the first tranche of £100k on 4% June 2020. The DfT have
acknowledged receipt but have not announced settlement.

The type of measures to be considered are likely to be:

e Providing temporary cycle routes to extend the strategic cycle network, with London’s
main roads repurposed for temporary cycle lanes and wider footways so that people can
safely socially distance.

e Providing additional space for people walking and cycling in town centres and at
transport hubs, including widening of footways on local high streets to enable people to
queue safely for shops which will help facilitate local economic recovery

e Accelerating delivery of low traffic neighbourhoods and school streets by working with
boroughs to reduce through traffic on residential streets, to further enable more people to
walk and cycle safely as part of their daily routine

General information from public response:

The lockdown has presented an opportunity to experience

e Quieter streets (with up to 80% less driving and public transport use)

o Less air pollution (about 40% less Nitrous Oxide pollution) and lower levels of carbon
pollution,

e more people walking and cycling in the quieter, calmer and safer streets.

The return to post lockdown has raised questions about how the gradual return could be
managed trying to maintain more of those positive experiences. By midday Tuesday 26 May,
over 3,000 people had visited the Common Place web link.

The most common concerns related to social distancing, concerns on the return of traffic
volumes and the increase in speeding during the lower trafficked period

Officers have been:
o talking to Transport for London about the strategic corridors under their authority
about introducing social distancing measures

e talking to our neighbouring boroughs of Lambeth and Lewisham so that good ideas
can cross borough boundaries

TfL have advised that the current funding situation may continue for some time after
lockdown






Table showing CPZ permits to property %

CPZ permits as Jan 2020

Zone Area Properties Permits on Visitors on Permits on Visitors + Permit Bays | Permits % of
LLPG issue Average issue Permits property
B PECKHAM 5242 890 20 890 910 1058 17%
C1 BANKSIDE 4670 321 6 321 327 345 7%
Cc2 BOROUGH 6061 874 22 874 896 664 15%
D NEWINGTON 6989 507 12 507 519 809 7%
E NW WALWORTH 5144 1026 31 1026 1057 951 21%
EC EAST CAMBERWELL 3701 894 29 894 923 927 25%
F LONDON BRIDGE 5155 262 7 262 269 260 5%
G BERMONDSEY 9292 1070 36 1070 1106 1249 12%
GR GRANGE 6207 632 18 632 650 1013 10%
H ROTHERHITHE 1487 168 4 168 172 149 12%
HH HERNE HILL 949 554 13 554 567 759 60%
J W WALWORTH 2968 630 19 630 649 651 22%
K CAMBERWELL 2749 498 14 498 512 567 19%
L S CAMBERWEELL 2232 513 20 513 533 549 24%
LG LUCAS GARDENS 667 204 6 204 210 313 31%




M1 NE WALWORTH 5126 929 27 929 956 1023 19%
M2 SE WALWORTH 5461 850 17 850 867 1131 16%
N ROTHERHITHE S 2918 329 3 329 332 399 1%
NC N CAMBERWELL 2653 510 14 510 524 601 20%
P N DULWICH & D HILL 1871 938 34 938 972 1250 52%
PR PECKHAM ROAD S 2147 806 41 806 847 950 39%
Q DOG KENNEL HILL 2486 536 13 536 549 570 22%
R NORTH PECKHAM 4733 1183 0 1183 1183 1092 25%
SB S BERMONDSEY 1636 182 2 182 184 169 11%
T TRAFALGAR 2601 143 3 143 146 392 6%
TS THORBURN SQUARE 2666 472 14 472 486 810 18%
Grand Total 97811 15921 425 15921 16346 18651 17%




Agenda Iltem 7
(O veouA

SELCHP Ltd Emissions Environmental Position Statement

SELCHP Ltd. is operated and maintained to meet the highest standards of environmental care,
meeting or exceeding emissions legislation.

South East London Combined Heat & Power (SELCHP) Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) was
constructed to operate in compliance with all applicable environmental legislation post commissioning
in 1994.

Since the implementation of Integrated Pollution Prevention & Control (IPPC) regulations in 2005,
under the Waste Incineration Directive (WID), the facility has been retro fitted, in order to comply with
more stringent Emissions Limit Values (ELV). As of January 2014, the WID was incorporated into the
Industrial Emissions Directive (IED) for existing facilities.

The facility is regulated by The Environment Agency (EA) through its bespoke IPPC Permit (Permit
number: NP3738SY), which sets out ELVs for emission to atmosphere, acceptable European Waste
Codes (EWC), as well as, the requirement to control of noise and odour from the site. Regular
reporting to SELCHP’s designated EA inspector ensures permit compliance, minimising environmental
impact.

SELCHP’s flues are fitted with Continuous Emissions Monitoring Systems (CEMS), which measure
and record all emissions to air from the facility, as specified in the environmental permit. It is a
condition of the environmental permit that, these emissions do not exceed the specified half-hourly
and daily average limits (see ‘Our Emissions’ page at selchp.co.uk).

The facility is also required to carry out periodic stack sampling and monitoring, to determine the
concentration of metals and organic carbons entrained in the flue gases, ensuring compliance with
ELVs. Periodic monitoring is carried out by an independent accredited third party contractor.

Energy recovery facilities like SELCHP play an important role in the UK’s waste management
strategy .

Understandably, concerns are often raised by the public regarding the impact of ERFs on local public
and environmental health. SELCHP endeavours to meet or exceed all current environmental
regulations. A position statement released by the Health Protection Agency (HPA) regards the local
health impact of modern ERFs as negligible and unmeasurable?.

1. See policy paper: 2010 to 2015 government policy: waste and recycling
2. See government guidance: Municipal waste incinerators emissions: impact on health

b,
0
[y R 0
s s B NESI™
Veolia ES SELCHP Limited Registered Office: %‘\“SE“EA“ZQ\G )
Landmann Way, Off Surrey Canal Road, 210 Pentonville Road, London N1 9JY \;“S\“‘-SS‘N‘“
Deptford, London, SE14 5RS Registeredin England & Wales: 03294518 coMmN
Tel: +44 (0)20 35676162 THE QUEEN'S AWARDS
A group company of FOR ENTERPRISE:

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

www.veolia.co.uk Veolia UK Limited 2014




Air Quality Updates

Air quality change during lockdown
Reporting on 2019 data

Environment Scrutiny Commission

17t June 2020

2 @lb_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcounci

Cleaner Air
Borough

g wa)| epuaby




Alr quality change
during lockdown

Overview:

NO2 (nitrogen dioxide): decreased
Ozone: increased
PM10 (fine particulates): no change
PM2.5 (ultra fine particulates): no change

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air ufhhm(K
B h O —counet

oroug Council
AWARDED BY THE ™ southwark .gov.uk
uuuuuuuuuuuuu




Air quality change during lockdown
GLA report? headlines

Levels of harmful gas nitrogen dioxide (NO,) at some of
London’s busiest roads are on average about half what they
were before lockdown

. This is in addition to the significant reductions delivered
by policies including the world’s first Ultra Low Emission
Zone (ULEZ), which contributed to a 44 per cent reduction in
roadside NO, in the central zone prior to lockdown

# https.//www.london.gov.uk/WHAT-WE-DO/environment/environment-publications/estimation-
changes-air-pollution-during-covid-19-outbreak-0

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air oufhwafK
Borough C —Councit
nnnnnnnnnnnn southwark.gov.uk
MAYOR OF LONDON




Air quality change during lockdown

Air Quality Consultants report #

(statistically adjusted data from air quality monitoring
stations across the country)

Between 20% to 40% reduction of NO,, and NO,

Approximately increase of 17% in roadside Ozone due to
the reduction in roadside NO,

i https://www.aqconsultants.co.uk/CMSPages/GetFile.aspx?quid=1222ff30-3c9f-4189-b353-2f2ee50edab1

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air oufhwafK
Borough C —Councit
AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk

MAYOR OF LONDON

0T



Nitrogen dioxide (NO2)

Sources: - mainly combustion
Road traffic (graph to follow) —
Reduced to around half, then gradual increase

Vehicle type already affected by ULEZ changes
-Heating sources —

_ess commercial heating - fewer offices open

_ess domestic heating - weather warmer than

average

£ @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air ouﬁ""mrK
Borough =~ Council
AWARDED BY THE ™ southwark .gov.uk
MAYOR OF LONDON

1T



Reduction in road traffic

A dramatic reduction in vehicles on the roads during
the Covid — 19 outbreak

Change in daily vehicle km travelled in London (2020 compared to 2019)

. jﬁ/ﬂ/\

754

[%] change in VKM

1004

= = pa = = = ;:—-_- =
= = [ [ [5] o [ E.
@ @ [} o = =
= = = = = w ] =
] & w o o= o - ™
g £ 3 2 $ a = =
Date

Location — TRLN — Central — Inner — Outer

2 @lb_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

aYy K
Cleaner Air (5%
Bo roug h southwark.gov.uk

AWARDED BY THE
MAYOR OF LONDON

A)



NO, concentrations: urban and rural

Dotted line: observed levels
Solid line: corrected levels

2 @lb_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

MAYOR OF LONDON

Cleaner Air o uﬂ\;./a( K
Borough O —Counait
AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk

€T



NO, concentrations: roadside and

iIndustrial

50— 1= :
- ] E: ::
~ 30 >
404 . i - ;
-
. .5 o - 1= e 1% .
L e g P18 BriCs bl e -
P e L oAb 8
vk -2 : e LA
= Tl o] 2
10- v
Jan Fab Mar Apr

2 @lb_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air o uﬂ\ua()(
Borough O —Councit
AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk

MAYOR OF LONDON

Vi



Source: - oxygen in presence of sunlight
and unburnt hydrocarbons or Nitrogen
Oxide (NO) from vehicle exhaust

Weather —

More sunshine than usual

Cross boundary air movements imported more ozone
Scavenging by NO2 —

Less NOZ2 available to scavenge ozone

£ @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air ouﬂ""m(K
Borough =~ Council
AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk
uuuuuuuuuuu

aT



Increases in Ozone concentrations

o
[=]

Mean O, daily concentration (g m™)

£
[=1

20+ - ; o — Dewsathered

Jen Fet Mar apr  dan Feb Mar Apr

2 @lb_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk

MAYOR OF LONDON

Cleaner Air -ﬂ\ua()(
Borough (5%3

9T



Many sources - - most harmful are unburnt
hydrocarbons from diesel vehicle exhaust

« Some imported particulates from
pollution outside London

« Some additional local pollution from
bonfires

« Balanced by less road traffic

£ @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air ouﬁ""m(K
Borough =~ Council
AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk
uuuuuuuuuuu

LT



Air quality change during lockdown
Uncertainties:
 London Mayor’s Transport strategy
— waiver of central London ULEZ charges
— introduction of low emission buses
 Weather conditions
« — atmospheric stability and temporal variations

« Data not ratified until end of year

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

. h/afK
Cleaner Air (5%
unci
Borough (A uman gov.uk
nnnnnnnnnnnn
nnnnnnnnnnnnn

8T



COVID-19 outbreak and Air Quality Impacts

The COVID-19 outbreak has highlighted:

* How air quality changes with emissions
* The importance of transboundary pollution.

* Reduction of NO, has a consequence for an increase in
Ozone

* Further analysis needed to fully understand all the
Impacts

* The scale of the challenge to improve air quality
in the future

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air oufhwafK
Borough C —Councit
nnnnnnnnnnnn southwark.gov.uk
uuuuuuuuuuuuu

6T



Southwark Air Quality
Annual Status Report
2019 - ASR




Southwark’s ASR

A record of air quality in Southwark for each
calendar year

Records progress on Southwark’s Air Quality Action
Plan

Submitted annually to GLA and Defra

ASR 2019 submitted 29t May 2020 and published
on the web site

https://www.southwark.qgov.uk/assets/attach/12637/2019-Air-

Quality-Annual-Status-Report.pdf

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air oufhwafK
Borough C —Councit
AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk
nnnnnnnnnnnnn

| X4



Southwark’s Air Quality

The Nitrogen Dioxide air quality in Southwark has
gradually improved since 2000 (there is a similar trend for
Particulate Matter)

Nitrogen Dioxide Trends
80
70
".’E 60 %—4
g %&Wn\, P\ A
(] /
3
g 40
a
s 30
(=2
2
£ 20
H
10
0 ; . . ; ; . . ; ‘ : : : ‘ ‘ : : ‘ ‘ :
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
=== NO2 Objective —@— Crystal Palace === Southwark 1 Larcom Street
= Southwark 2 Old Kent Road === Southwark 5 Old Kent Road e=¢=» Southwark 6 Elephant & Castle

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

MAYOR OF LONDON

Cleaner Air ufhhlﬂfK
Borough O Couan

g Council
AWARDED BY THE southwark.gov.uk

44



Air Quality Action Plan

The action plan lists measures and progress to:

Manage local air quality

Reduce emissions from buildings
ncrease public awareness

Reduce emissions from road traffic
Reduce Carbon emissions
Regulation

Support the GLA

Support the Public Health Framework
Objectives

2 @b_southwark [ facebook.com/southwarkcouncil

Cleaner Air 0

Borough C—Council
AWARDED BY THE

MAYOR OF LONDON

ec



Agenda Item 10 #

Second Environment Scrutiny Commission report on the Climate
Emergency road map

Contents
1 Background page 2
2 Summary of recommendations (to be completed)
3 Context page 3
4 Climate and Ecological emergency page 4
5 Restoration page 6
6 Leadership statement, principles and data driving the engagement and
emerging strategy page 6
7 Baseline data page 7
8 Engagement page 8
9 Partnership and strategy page 9
10 Moving to a sustainable transport system page 9
1 Regeneration and Carbon Offsetting page 10

12 Community Energy and Local Energy Page 14



25

On 27th March 2019 Southwark’s Council Assembly resolved to call on cabinet to
declare a Climate Emergency and do all it can to make the borough carbon neutral
by 2030.

In order to take this forward a Climate Summit was held in July 2019, attended by
councillors, officers and community representatives. The Environment Scrutiny
Commission received an update on this event shortly after.

On 1 October 2019 Councillor Richard Livingstone, Cabinet member for
Environment, Transport and the Climate Emergency, with the support of officers,
presented the Climate Emergency Strategy draft road map to the Environment
Scrutiny Commission. The Commission discussed the plan and also heard from
Councillor Adam Harrison, Cabinet member for a sustainable Camden, who spoke
about the wider engagement work of the council, Camden’s Citizens’ Assembly and
Extinction Rebellion, who recently gathered views from Southwark residents.

Following this the Commission sent a report for cabinet to consider alongside the
final Climate Emergency Strategy road map, which went to cabinet on 29 October.

The Commission continued to take evidence on the Climate Emergency over the
next three meetings, as well as the other receive evidence on the other
complimentary review on Air Quality. Three interlinking issues were particularly
considered at the 4 December, 2 0 January and 10 March:

- Planning , Regeneration and the built environment

- Transport and the local physical infrastructure to support a transition to lower
emissions

- Community Energy

On 10 March the Commission received another update on the Climate Emergency
strategy development, which was intended for the Cabinet meeting of 24 March;
however the pandemic measures put in place on 23 March meant this did not go
ahead. Instead a virtual rescheduled cabinet meeting was held on 7 April, and this
received an amended version of the report with a Coronavirus addendum setting the
intention to change the engagement plans. The cabinet accepted the report
recommendations; however the revised engagement plans were ‘called in’ by OSC
on 12 May.

The 12" May Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) held the Call-in of the 7 April
2020 cabinet report: Delivering a Climate Strategy for Southwark. Concerns centred
on the addendum to the report which outlines the reduced engagement following the
announcement of pandemic and the intention to move more engagement post the
development of the draft strategy. The OSC resolved not to refer the report back to
cabinet; however it did make a number of recommendations on the engagement
programme which were broadly accepted by the lead cabinet member , Clir
Livingston. The following commitments were made to take place up to the July ,
when the draft report will go to cabinet :



26

e Online Hub — the council has commissioned and launched an online portal and
a report will be produced on the interim findings at the time of the July council
report.

e Partnership Steering Group — will reconvene virtually to meet monthly between
now and July.

e Members Working Group — will be established.

Consultation with young people and concerted efforts to reach the BAME community,
young and older people will be undertaken post July.

2 Summary of recommendations

The start of 2020 has seen several global environmental crisis linked to climate
change and environmental degradation: the bush fires of Australia, the warmest
January globally, the wettest February in UK, and most disruptive of all the COVID
19 pandemic.

In 2016, UNEP’s prescient Frontiers Report sounded the alarm on the rise of
infections diseases arising from animals, reporting that 60 per cent of all known
infectious diseases in humans and 75 per cent of all emerging infectious diseases
are zoonotic. COVID-19 is just one of many diseases now known to have crossed
between animals and humans; others include HIV, MERS, SARs and Ebola.
Although transmission pathways are still not fully understood and the origin of
COVID 19 has not been definitively established, the UN advise protecting habitats
and biodiversity will reduce the risk of further harmful zoonotics emerging.

COVID 19 has been a difficult and often tragic for most human societies, whereas for
nature it has been a mixed blessing. In some places were are seeing a resurgence
of flora and fauna , with sheep’s invading welsh towns, and people in cities getting a
welcome glimpse of cities with reduced air and noise pollution . The slower, quitter
of life pace has improved many peoples ability to enjoy nature, from the ability to
hear bird song to the awareness of the slow change of trees come into blossom.

The global lockdown has seen significant reduction of fossils fuel use and the
spectra of oil prices going negative, and there has been a drop in the consumption of
most consumer goods. At the peak of population confinement emissions dropped by
17% over 2019 mean levels- ' However the pandemics has also seen a rise in some

" https://www.uea.ac.uk/about/-/covid-19-crisis-causes-17-drop-in-global-carbon-emissions

3



27

consumables, with an increase in medical plastic waste from PPE and single use
face masks and gloves that is already posing a risk to wildlife.

While to total overall reduction in resources is likely to slow climate change and have
other environmental benefits, the adverse economic consequences and consequent
impact on humans are likely to be server.

There will be some opportunity to of the lockdown practices post adopt the some to

the new practices we have had to utilise to reduce resource depletion in the future ,

and one of obvious one is the increase in remote working and consequent decrease
in transport, and the uptake in cycling and walking journeys .

In rebuilding our economy post COVID 19 the UN Environmental Panel recommend
5 design principles for members states, however many of these will apply to local
government :

1) The centrality of “green and decent” jobs and income;

2) Investments in public wealth and social and ecological infrastructure;
3) Circularity to advance sustainable consumption and production;

4) Responsible finance for climate stability and ecosystems integrity; and
5) Socially inclusive outcomes

The pandemic has rightly seen resources switch to safeguarding life locally, however
the Climate Emergency remains just beyond the horizon and disruption of life under
COVID 19 is a spectra of the future if we do not continue to do everything we can to
evert us from the disastrous path towards the 3-4% degrees of climate change that
we are presently headed towards, unless we manage to make the systemic and far
reaching changes that are required.

In the first report scrutiny report to the cabinet the Commission recommended that
the Climate Emergency also incorporates work on the wider ecological emergency.
This recommendation was echoed by the Partnership Steering group, convened to
inform the emerging Climate emergency strategy, who also recommended
considering broadening the strategy to an “ecological emergency” as well as a
climate emergency. If Southwark were to do that it would put us on the same footing
as the many of the other Local Authorities who declared both a climate and
ecological emergency.

The study published in the journal Nature Climate Change shows that daily emissions decreased by
17% — or 17 million tonnes of carbon dioxide — globally during the peak of the confinement measures
in early April compared to mean daily levels in 2019, dropping to levels last observed in 2006

4



28

There are good reasons for looking at the boarder ecological emergency at the same
time as the Climate Emergency. Environmentalists are increasingly looking at the
linkages and interdependences between climate change, land use change, loss of
habitat, chemical flows, soil depletion and reductions in biodiversity.

Zero Carbon Britain’s report on responding to the Climate Emergency recommends
The Stockholm Institute's influential work on Planetary Boundaries. These look at the
ecological boundaries that we need to remain within to for a habitable world.

Presently this work estimates that we have already exceeded the planetary boundary
for loss of biosphere integrity; biodiversity loss and extinctions. The main drivers of
change are the demand for food, water, and natural resources, causing severe
biodiversity loss. The other boundary that has been crossed is nitrogen and
phosphorus flows to the biosphere and oceans, as a result of industrial and
agricultural processes.

BIOSPHERE INTEGRITY

BIl CLIMATE CHANGE

(Not yet
quantified)

NOVEL ENTITIES
(Not yet quantified)

LAND-SYSTEM
CHANGE

STRATOSPHERIC
OZONE DEPLETION

FRESHWATER USE

ATMOSPHERIC AEROSOL
LOADING
(Not yet quantified)

OCEAN
ACIDIFICATION

W Below boundary (safe)
In zone of uncertainty (increasing risk)

BIOGEOCHEMICAL

FLOWS I Beyond zone of uncertainty (high risk)



29

Negative changes impact on each domain, but positive changes also build resilience.
Modern research is showing the huge capacity for the biosphere to absorb carbon,
and biodiverse regions are more resilient to climate change.

Recommendation

Climate Emergency is reframed to include the wider Ecological Emergency,
with a commitment to work towards staying within safe Planetary Boundaries,
and this shift is tested in the engagement process.

Increasingly environmentalists are saying that restoration has to be part of the plan if
we are to achieve carbon zero. Trees, soil, have an enormous potential to absorb
carbon and if we are to reverse biodiversity loss we cannot just conserve, we need to
restore. Centring restoration is an emerging approach that is gaining credence, but is
less familiar than carbon reduction. Soil can hold four times the amount of carbon
than in the atmosphere. Vegetation can protect citizens from the adverse impact of
emissions on highways.

The FOE plan, which is referenced in the Climate Emergency strategy,
recommended that council land is used to drawdown carbon (e.g. tree planting and
soil carbon management). There are possibilities here in both green spaces in parks,
and alongside roads and other green spaces in urban settings. These can all make
both a positive difference in carbon emissions, and increasing biodiversity. Many
local authorities now produce green infrastructure strategies.

Centring protecting the biodiversity and ecology of Southwark is also likely to
increase social commitment and drive positive behaviour change as research shows
that people care, on average, more about loss of flora and fauna, than climate
change (though there is a rise in concern about both). The huge concern about loss
of bees and rise in gardening that protects wildlife demonstrate the community
strength feeling.

Recommendation

Include a strand in the strategy for Restoration, which includes increasing
carbon absorption and improving the biosphere and link to present
biodiversity plans.

In the first report the Commission recommended that the engagement process start
with a leadership statement from the council about the Climate Emergency and the
council’s approach to environmental stewardship. It was recommended that this
outlined how fossil fuel burning, vehicle emissions, a denuded green environment,



30

loss of species, all contribute to the climate emergency and why it matters for our
borough, city and planet. The Commission advised that this statement, and
subsequent distribution and education in the borough, should be implemented before
the rounds of engagement detailed below to ensure we have the best input from our
communities.

It was recommended that as well as outlining a clear position the statement should
additionally overlay some of the wealth of information we have (council tax bands,
indices of multiple deprivation, car ownership, road causality rates, air quality etc.) to
fully understand who in the borough experiences the benefits and who suffers the
most from our environmental actions and to integrate the principle equality, fairness
and climate justice.

There the cabinet report back contained a very positive endorsement of the
leadership statement; however the timescale for the production of this is unclear.

On principles the second cabinet report said the Fairer Future principles would be
used, which makes absolute sense. In addition to this, under the ‘Inclusivity’ section,
there was commitment to a Just Transition, and although there was not explicit
endorsement of the principle of Climate Justice, put forward by the Commission are
in effect very similar principles.

There was a further discussion on mapping out data on deprivation at the meeting on
10 March, where the Climate Emergency Director gave assurances that this was the
intention.

An online survey was launched late May and this does contain and opening
statement setting out the councils ambitions. This could be further improved when
the draft strategy is launched for consultation with more information on carbon
emissions and the relationship with deprivation.

Recommendation

The final consultation on the draft strategy must overlay information on
emissions and deprivation to enable people to make informed responses to
the strategy and the collective work of reducing emissions, underpinned by
the commitment to an inclusive, fair and just transition.

In order to bring the commitment to a Just Transition to life and ensure an equitable
transition the Commission recommend that the links between social and
environmental justice are mapped, as set out above.

Baseline data will be extremely important to understand, target and measure the
implementation of measures to reduce and absorb emissions.

7



31

Data on Carbon should include both emissions and consumption. It is welcomed that
the joint work with London Council intends to focus on reducing the consumption of
food, clothing, electronics and aviation. The Commission welcomes the survey
theme on consumption and the commitment to address this as a theme in the
strategy.

A net zero carbon reduction programme that omits to systematically address
consumption will mean that a large part of Southwark’s contribution to Climate
Change would go unaddressed. Research by Leeds University shows consumption
emissions make a significant part of the UK carbon budget — see more here:
http://www.emissions.leeds.ac.uk/.

A method for bringing this information together to make intelligent choices is to utilise
the ‘Virtual Twin’ Al programme , where the boroughs data can be imputed then
recommended for actions are generated.

Recommendation

e Map both emissions and consumption data.

e Map deprivation data and overlay this with emissions data to generate
and prioritise the most effective actions that enable an inclusive, fair
and Just Transition.

e Investigate digital twin Al technology.

On the Borough wide engagement process warmth was expressed to the practical
suggestions made in the first report, however few commitments were provided. The
pandemic has further necessitated the need for a detailed programme of
engagement. The Commission is pleased to see that an online questionnaire has
been initiated, and the Partnership and Cross Party members groups will shortly be
convened in response to the OSC meeting.

The Commissions remains convinced that a Youth Council ought to be convened
given their democratic mandate in Southwark, the adverse impact on future
generations of environmental degradation , and the pre-eminence of young
environmentalist like Greta Thunberg and school strike movement in driving the
issue up the agenda. There is an excellent Eco Councillor movement in schools that
would allow for easy engagement and the council should to make the most of this
network.

The Commission also think that work with more marginalised groups ought to
happen sooner rather than later.


http://www.emissions.leeds.ac.uk/

32

Recommendations

There are several other approaches indicated in the first Commission and
OSC report that could be taken forward, even with the Covid 19 restrictions in
place, these include:

e Engagement with the Youth Council , youth environment groups , and
other young people to set up an environment Youth Council

e Engagement with Eco Councillors in schools (primary schools are
working remotely with more and more children attending)

e Early action to engage with communities that might not easily be able
to engage digitally or where the climate change agenda has not featured
peoples views equally, including BAME, older and disabled people.

The Cabinet report outlined strong partnership work with London councils, and good
local engagement with local green campaign groups. The Commission would like to
see more engagement with wider strategic bodies such as the GLA, TFL, as well as
the business community, particular the local Business Improvement Districts (BIDS)

There are several low carbon freight initiative that the London Bridge BID are
supporting , such as Peddle Me, which offer the opportunity for Southwark to be a
the forefront of moving to low carbon commercial movements .

Recommendation

Engage with the local BIDS as part of the consultation strategy.

One of the biggest potential levers the councils have on emissions is through its
transport plans, particularly if partnership can be built with other London boroughs
and the Mayor of London, as the lead for TFL.

The first scrutiny commission report recommended a target to drive down car use
and the April Cabinet report set out a target agreed with other London Boroughs to
halve petrol and diesel road journeys by 2030 and incentivise sustainable and active
travel options. A concrete target is welcomed; however we think this ought to be
more ambitious over a shorter time period.



33

The commission revisited the Movement Plan at the March where some local
initiatives were presented, alongside big ticket changes planned for the Old Kent
Road. While the Commission welcomed these, on the whole, there was concern that
the operational activity to deliver the good ambitions of the Movement Plan lacked a
coherent programme. The Commission discovered deprivation data sitting behind
the plan, but this was not referred to by the officers in the meeting and there was no
evidence that this is being used to drive decisions in a systematic way.

The risk is that pockets of good practice will emerge in places with the most vocal
activists or large scale regeneration, but these will not necessarily be the places with
the greatest need or deliver the local changes people most want. Furthermore hyper
local changes are most likely to drive unintended outcomes of displaced traffic,
rather than the win win outcome of traffic reducing overall. More work needs to be
done to implement Low Traffic Neighbourhoods over a broader area and in
conjunctions with TFL work on major roads and aligned with plans to increase public
transport and active travel.

The recent announcement by the Mayor of London that main streets in the city,
including between London Bridge and Waterloo, will only be open for buses,
pedestrians and cyclists, and this is welcome response to the pandemic. He has
asked local councils to close minor roads. An initiative such as Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods would be complimentary to this initiative and enable citizens to
sustain the increased walking and cycling witnessed during lockdown. Measures will
need to be taken to ensure people with mobility problems are catered for.

Recommendation

e Adopt a local target to halve petrol and diesel road journeys by 2025,
and by 90% by 2030, and encourage London Council and the Mayor to
do likewise.

e Develop an operational plan with partners to implement this focusing on
structural changes, informed by the ambitions of the Movement Plan
and its associated deprivation data.

Regeneration, carbon emissions and resource use

Globally building emissions and their construction together account for 36 percent of
energy use and 39 percent of energy-related carbon dioxide emissions annually,
according to the United Nations Environment Program. The figures for Southwark
may well be higher, and this is something that should be quantified in the data report
expected.

10



34

Building emissions are a combination of two things. First there is the day-to-day
energy use, the ‘operational carbon emissions’, which refers primarily to fuel and
power use of the completed building. The second is the amount of carbon
generated through manufacturing building materials, transporting materials to
construction sites, and the actual construction process—what is known as the
‘embodied carbon’ of a building.

When building are designed the ‘operational carbon’ is measured and governed by
2013 Building Regulations part L. The draft New Southwark Plan requires a 100%
reduction for major residential development and a minimum of 40% reduction for
non-residential development on the 2013 standards of this must be delivered ‘on-
site’. Where this does not happen, a financial contribution is required from the
applicant to meet the target, and is used for Carbon Offsetting.

The second measure of carbon expanded is in the construction process, or
‘Embedded Carbon’. This is not however governed by either law of current policy.
Extinction Rebellion highlighted this weakness and that currently emissions created
by constructing the new building (or demolishing the buildings that were there
before) are not currently measured even though construction and maintenance can
account for more than 50% of carbon emitted through the lifetime of a building? .

Constructing buildings emits significant amounts of carbon emission, and there is
also the related issue of the huge amounts of waste generated by regeneration; 48%
of all waste in London comes from construction, excavation and demolition.3
Construction not only impacts on carbon emissions , it also impacts more widely on
our ecology through the use of virgin materials ( wood, mined minerals etc.) which
will drive land use change and put pressure on other Planetary Boundaries .

The Commission considered two emerging and related approached to the problem of
reducing carbon and conserving resources through the whole life cycle of a building.

The first approach is outline in the Net Zero Carbon Buildings: A Framework
Definition. This report is intended as a first step towards delivering buildings that are
in line with the aims of the Paris Agreement — namely net zero carbon across the
whole life of a building, both operational and construction / embodied carbon. The
framework has been developed by an industry task group of businesses, trade
associations and non-profit organisations .The approach emphasis transparency and
accountability and the use of offsets to address embodied carbon.

Add diagram in executive summary of the report

The second approached examined was the London Waste and Recycling Board
report: London's circular economy route map. The section on Buildings recommends

2 Leeds University 2017
3 Page 17 London's circular economy route map

11



35

a whole life approach to reducing the carbon and others material used in
construction by increasing the ability to retro fit, refurbish, reuse or recycle:

RECYCLE/COMPOST

Q
REMANUFACTURE O

RECLAIM/REUSE D

REFURBISH Q
X
&

(o)
)
[a)
z
o
=
z
e
)
=
m
»

Above: Building Revolutions: applying the circular economy to the built environment, David Cheshire
(AECOM), RIBA, 2016

Ref: Building Revolutions’ (2016), David Cheshire, RIBA Publishing

This circular approach is inline with the UN recommendations on the Environment
and has the potential to drive the deep structural and systemic changes in our
economy which will be needed to stay within Planetary Boundaries.

Embedded carbon is a huge part of our carbon emissions originating from small
scale building and our larger regeneration schemes. Officers indicated there are no
planning requirement on this because of wider planning law does not measure
embedded carbon. This is a major challenge. Regeneration officers seemed alive to
this issue, and indicated that they are considering the whole life cycle of carbon and

brought the Commissions attention to regeneration initiatives that reuse existing
buildings.

Given the significance of the carbon and other resources used in Regeneration, and
the (imperfect) leverage the Council has through the planning process this is an area
that needs more focus. Carbon in building schemes will be a huge part of Southwark
carbon budget up to 2030, both the embedded carbon generation through
construction and the emissions from planned new buildings.

The 7 April report on the Climate Emergency report outlined steps agreed with
London Councils that that will be taken in conjunction with other London Boroughs,
these include:

12



36

e Low-carbon development: Secure low carbon buildings and infrastructure via
borough planning. Programme timescale: 2020 — 2022.

e Reduce consumption emissions: Reduce consumption emissions by two
thirds, focusing on food, clothing, electronics and aviation. Programme
timescale: 2020 — 2030.

These are welcome steps, however it is unclear if this work will encompass a joint
working to drive down embodied carbon and other resources used by the
construction industry through development.

Carbon Offsetting

In the Commissions first report a recommendation was made to a) eliminate or
drastically reducing its use and b) ensure any offsetting funds are used effectively
and produce an annual report. Cabinet thought Carbon Offsetting ought to continue
but agree this ought to be reduced.

Officers said that the draft New Southwark Plan increases the amount of operational
carbon to be addressed ‘on site’ to 40% for major non-residential development.
subject to the Inspector agreeing to this. Currently, the London Plan requires non-
residential development to achieve a 35% reduction. This new 40% target is one
which most boroughs in London have now adopted. This will require major
developments in Southwark to exceed the Mayor’s target by 5%. Officers said that
currently buildings achieve 34 % on average and on occasions as high as 70%, so
they know the 40% target is achievable. Major residential development must meet a
100% reduction.

If we are to address Climate Change effectively generally environmentalists consider
that carbon offsetting ought to be reduced to zero or as close to zero as possible.

Extinction Rebellion were critical of ‘net’ zero as a concept, as this allows new
building to pay to pollute long into the future, and can give the impression that
initiatives are much greener than they actually are . They critiqued the latitude given
to Elephant Park, formerly the Heygate estate, is an example. They told the
Commission that this development was initially touted as a flagship environmental
project incorporating a new 100% renewable energy plant. However, the developer,
Lendlease, decided however that this was not financially viable and was permitted by
the terms of their planning application to simply convert the carbon reduction targets
that would have been achieved through renewable energy, into a recalculated offset
payment. That development will now generate just 3% of its energy needs through
solar panels and the rest through fossil fuels, but the increased offset payments
mean that it is still described as ‘zero-carbon’.

13



37

Officers agreed it is better to meet energy targets ‘on site’ and assured the
Commission they will be reviewing practices. They are also considering doubling the
amount of carbon charged, i.e. increasing the amount developers have to pay.

As well as driving down the use of Carbon Offsets, clarity on the use of offset funds
is also important, to ensure that are transparently apportioned and well used.
Councils such as Islington use Carbon Offsets to invest capital in Community
Energy.

Presently, according to a GLA report, Southwark has not spent any of its Carbon
offsets since at least 2016, although it has a total of £1.694, 824 carbon offsets in the
pipeline; the majority of which are due to be verified and paid post construction.*

The Commission requested a report quantifying the amount of Carbon Offset and
their use, which is due to come to the 17 June meeting.

Recommendations:

e A focus on reducing ‘on site’ carbon emissions to at least 40% for major
non-residential development and 100% for major residential
development through regular monitoring

e Reduce embodied carbon and conserve resources in construction, by
utilising the work of the London Waste and Recycling Board work on the
Circular Economy and the Net Zero Carbon Buildings: A Framework
Definition.

e Double carbon offset payments

Community led renewable energy is a manifesto and council plan commitment the
council has struggled to take forward, and last year this was subject to a scrutiny
review by the previous scrutiny commissions with the Environment remit. The first
Commission report encouraged the use of community energy at the earliest
opportunity to help build community engagement and confidence in our resolve and
commitment. In response the cabinet said the council is taking forward the proposal

4 Twenty-three LPAs reported that no carbon offset payments have been spent
since1 October 2016. Southwark reported that the first release of funds would take
place in summer 2019. £229,388 has been calculated and will be collected post-
construction, and a further £1,465,436 has not yet calculated as a post construction
testing approach is being taken and will be verified at that point.

14



38

for community led renewable energy, however the reported cite challenges in
developing sustainable energy projects on our estates. The report assured the
Commission that cabinet are looking at a range of ideas to take the work forward.

Following this cabinet response a session on Community Energy was held at the 10t
March meeting. Repowering London outlined how community led renewable energy
is based on facilitating a decentralised model of empowering communities and
community benefit companies. As well as the more obvious benefits of carbon
reduction there are also the social benefits that come from visible solar projects in
the community and the cooperative model that is used, and the ability of local
community energy projects to mobilise and enthuse people.

At the meeting the Commission heard that the previous technical evaluation of three
community energy pilots on Southwark estates had concentrated on the narrow
question of economic value, rather than considering the more intangible social
benefits. The pilots were also conducted during a challenging moment in the funding
for solar as the FIT programme was ending, and the future funding model was
uncertain.

The Repowering London highlighted these actions and opportunities to improve
viability:

e The new finance model allows for a mixture of capital investment

e Carbon Offsets have been used to pump prime schemes in other local
authorities

e Community buildings, such as schools and community centres, can be good
sites for solar schemes as energy use is in the day, improving economic
viability, and the social outcomes from working with schools children are also
high

We hope the presentation by Repowering London and subsequent discussion will
enable some fresh thinking about how to take this forward, post FIT, and note the
commitment to prepare a report on this for summer 2020.

Local Energy

At the Commission meeting on 10th March the Cabinet lead, ClIr Richard Livingston,
also indicated that the council would be seeking to maximise local energy projects on
our estates, which is welcome.

Lambeth have commissioned an organisation to carry out a GIS spatial analysis of
every Lambeth property to calculate Solar PV potential and carbon savings with a
view to carrying out feasibility studies in due course . Likewise Tower Hamlets are
identifying all roofs in their ownership that could be fitted with bio solar (green roofs
and solar combined) and have set aside £500,000 to implement this.

15



39

Recommendation:
Bring back a report to scrutiny in September which:

e Considers the viability of supporting community schools to adopt
community energy , as a first stage in rolling out Community Energy.

e Considers investing a proportion of our Carbon Offset funds into
Community Energy

e Sets out a plan for mapping and identifying viable PV’s sites in
Southwark

16



40



41

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMISSION

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019-20
AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Fitzroy Williams Tel: 020 7525 7102

Name

No of
copies

Name

Julie Timbrell, Scrutiny Team SPARES

External

No of
copies

10

Electronic Copy
Members
Councillors:

Councillor Leanne Werner
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Michael Situ
Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor Graham Neale
Councillor Damian O'Brien

Coopted member:

Jeremy Leach
Reserves Members

Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Eleanor Kerslake

Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE

Councillor Adele Morris

Total: 10

Dated: September 2019




	Agenda
	5 Highways,  pathways and car-parking  update, including impact of Covid 19
	CPZ property to permit %

	7 SELCHP
	8 Air quality update
	10 Scrutiny Review: Climate emergency
	 Distribution List 2019/20
	Distribution List_Environment v2


